
 

1 

 

 

 

 

Gunnison County, CO 

Community Development Office 
221 N. Wisconsin St. Ste. D, Gunnison, CO 81230 

Phone: (970) 641-0360       
Website: www.gunnisoncounty.org  
Email: rricord@gunnisoncounty.org 

 

To: Gunnison Basin Sage-grouse Strategic Committee Members 

From: Shannon Frias, Administrative Assistant III 

Date: January 13, 2022 

 

Included in your packet for the Wildlife Conservation Strategic 

Committee Meeting:  

January 19, 2022 Agenda 

Draft of December 15, 2021 Minutes 

Development Flow Chart 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

mailto:rricord@gunnisoncounty.org


 

 

 GUNNISON BASIN SAGE-GROUSE STRATEGIC COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
DATE: Wednesday, January 19, 2021 
PLACE: Zoom meeting, Meeting ID: 847 8152 3751 (see Teleconference Information below)  
 
  1. 10:00am ● Call Regular Meeting to Order; Determination of Quorum;  Verify     
                                               Public Notice of Meeting 
   ● Agenda Approval 
   ● Approval of December 15, 2021 Meeting Minutes 
 
  2. 10:05  ● Committee Member Comments/Reports  
 
  3. 10:40  ● Raven Depredation Carcass Mitigation 
 
  4.  10:55  ● Cheatgrass and Coordinator Position Update 
 
  5.  11:10  ● Development Flowchart 
 
  5.  11:15  ● Gunnison County Sage-Grouse Conservation Action Plan Discussion 

and Updates  
 
  6. 12:00pm ● Public Comments 
 
  7. 12:05   ● Future Meeting 
 
  8. 12:10   ● Adjourn 
 
NOTE: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items up to 24 hours in advance or the deletion of items at any time. All times are approximate. 
Regular Meetings, Public Hearings, and Special Meetings are recorded and ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM. Work Sessions are not recorded and formal 
action cannot be taken. Two or more Gunnison County Commissioners may attend this meeting. For further information, contact the County Administration at 641-
0248. If special accommodations are necessary per ADA, contact 641-0248 or TTY 641-3061 prior to the meeting. 
 

Teleconference Information: 
Zoom meeting, Meeting ID: 847 8152 3751 
Passcode: 383775 
(https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F8478
1523751%3Fpwd%3DeHRPRURCWU1Bd2gyc0xWdnR1ZjI4QT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7C%7C8ce43cc2b
7f8453631f508d9d0875259%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C63777010188768
2777%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJX
VCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&amp;sdata=mWqwUMXg1OZuisa8x1OIIlNWxPzvmTtGV04s6uw89pI%3D&amp;r

eserved=0) 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84781523751%3Fpwd%3DeHRPRURCWU1Bd2gyc0xWdnR1ZjI4QT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7C%7C8ce43cc2b7f8453631f508d9d0875259%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C637770101887682777%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&amp;sdata=mWqwUMXg1OZuisa8x1OIIlNWxPzvmTtGV04s6uw89pI%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84781523751%3Fpwd%3DeHRPRURCWU1Bd2gyc0xWdnR1ZjI4QT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7C%7C8ce43cc2b7f8453631f508d9d0875259%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C637770101887682777%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&amp;sdata=mWqwUMXg1OZuisa8x1OIIlNWxPzvmTtGV04s6uw89pI%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84781523751%3Fpwd%3DeHRPRURCWU1Bd2gyc0xWdnR1ZjI4QT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7C%7C8ce43cc2b7f8453631f508d9d0875259%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C637770101887682777%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&amp;sdata=mWqwUMXg1OZuisa8x1OIIlNWxPzvmTtGV04s6uw89pI%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84781523751%3Fpwd%3DeHRPRURCWU1Bd2gyc0xWdnR1ZjI4QT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7C%7C8ce43cc2b7f8453631f508d9d0875259%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C637770101887682777%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&amp;sdata=mWqwUMXg1OZuisa8x1OIIlNWxPzvmTtGV04s6uw89pI%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84781523751%3Fpwd%3DeHRPRURCWU1Bd2gyc0xWdnR1ZjI4QT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7C%7C8ce43cc2b7f8453631f508d9d0875259%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C637770101887682777%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&amp;sdata=mWqwUMXg1OZuisa8x1OIIlNWxPzvmTtGV04s6uw89pI%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84781523751%3Fpwd%3DeHRPRURCWU1Bd2gyc0xWdnR1ZjI4QT09&amp;data=04%7C01%7C%7C8ce43cc2b7f8453631f508d9d0875259%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C637770101887682777%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&amp;sdata=mWqwUMXg1OZuisa8x1OIIlNWxPzvmTtGV04s6uw89pI%3D&amp;reserved=0


Steps for Approving Development Proposed in Gunnison County Related to Gunnison Sage-Grouse 

Is the development pro-
posed on federal or pri-
vate land? 

PRIVATE FEDERAL 

Do you know the general area you want to devel-
op? The sage-grouse review may identify a differ-
ent location for development.  

NO YES 

Fill out a Pre-Application 
Conference Request 
with suggested site. 

Submit Building (OWTS, 
Land Use Change, etc) 
application. 

Site visit required by biol-
ogist (usually for Tier 1 
Habitat).  Site visit sched-
uled for biologist, Colora-
do Parks and Wildlife 
representative, Gunnison 
County Public Works, 
and Gunnison County 
Community Develop-
ment Department repre-
sentatives.  Discuss rec-
ommendations on site. 

Site visit not re-
quired by biolo-
gist (usually for 
Tier 2 Habitat).  

Biologist provides review to County with recommenda-
tions to minimize impacts to sage-grouse and their habi-
tats.  County sends review and Certificate of Administra-
tive Review for applicant to sign.  Sage-grouse review is a 
reference for County staff throughout the remainder of 
the building permit approval process (and does not guar-
antee  permit approval).  If applicant submitted Pre-
Application Conference Request originally, submit permit 
(building, OWTS, Land Use Change, etc) application. 

Contact federal agency (USFS, BLM, etc).  The Federal process can 
take significant time so this should be done as soon as possible.  
After considering your project, the Agency will be able to give you 
an estimate for the length of time before construction can begin.   

NO YES 

The Agency will need to consider the 
potential effects of the project under 
the National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA).  The Agency will work 
with you on the location and will 
need information about the process-
es required to complete the project.   

The project will likely require Section 
7 Consultation under the Endangered 
Species Act in addition to NEPA.  You 
will work with the Federal Agency to 
determine if there are ways to reduce 
negative impacts to Gunnison sage-
grouse and critical habitat.  The Fed-
eral Agency will consult with U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service and the addition-
al length of time needed for this pro-
cess will depend on the level of im-
pact to the species.  The Federal 
Agency will provide you with an esti-
mate for the length of time before 
construction can begin. 

Once Federal regulatory processes are com-
plete, submit a Building (OWTS, Land Use 
Change, etc) application to Gunnison County 
for the County sage-grouse review process. 

Is the project proposed in Gunnison Sage-grouse Critical Habitat? 

Can the project be moved to an area 
outside of Gunnison sage-grouse 

Critical Habi- tat? 
NO YES 

Avoiding Critical Habitat 
will greatly reduce the 
federal regulatory re-
quirements and help in 
meeting industry time 
demands.   

Site visit not re-
quired by biolo-
gist (usually for 
Tier 2 Habitat).  



 

1 

 

GUNNISON BASIN SAGE-GROUSE STRATEGIC COMMITTEE 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  

December 15, 2021 
 
 

The December 15, 2021 Gunnison Basin Sage-grouse Strategic Committee meeting was conducted in the 
Gunnison County Blackstock Government Center, 2nd floor meeting room, located at 221 N. Wisconsin #D, 
Gunnison, CO, 81230. The meeting was also available on Zoom. 
 
Committee Members Present: 
 
Voting Members: 
Nathan Seward, Chairperson, Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) 
Liz Smith, Vice-Chairperson, Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) 
Matt Vasquez, U.S. Forest Service (USFS) 
Theresa Childers, National Park Service (NPS) 
Sue Navy, High County Conservation Advocates (HCCA) 
Greg Peterson, Stockgrowers’ Association 
Peter Caloger, Community At-Large 
Jon Kaminsky, Bureau of Land Management (BLM) 
Tim Kugler, Recreation 
 
 
Non-Voting Members  
 
Others in the Audience: 
Marcella Tarantino, Bird Conservancy of the Rockies 
Jessica Young, Western Colorado University (WCU) 
Whit Blair, US Fish and Wildlife Service (UFWS)  
Darren Long, U.S. Forest Service 
Brandon Diamond, Colorado Parks and Wil 
Allison Hearne, National Resources Conservation Services (NRCS) 
Pat Magee, Western Colorado University (WCU) 
John Scott, Scott Resource Management Service  
Paul Jones, Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
 
 
Staff Members Present: 
Aleshia Rummel, Gunnison Conservation District, Wildlife Biologist 
Shannon Frias, Gunnison County Community Development 
 
Others present as listed in text. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Seward called the December 17, 2021 meeting of the Gunnison Basin 
Sage-grouse Strategic Committee to order at 10:05 A.M. 
 
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Seward confirmed that a quorum was present. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: Smith moved to approve agenda as presented. Vasquez seconded.  
 
APPROVAL OF November 17, 2021 MEETING MINUTES: Moved: by Smith and seconded by Caloger 
to approve the November 17, 2021 meeting minutes as amended. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 
 Smith updated on letters of support. Letters of support have been received by the Gunnison Conservation 
District, Stock Growers, Colorado Wool Growers Association, Sisk-a-dee who contributed $500 annually to 
the facilitator position, Upper Gunnison contributed $4200 and potentially another $15,000 from Aerial 
Spring Agencies. There is money coming in. Smith stated that if we could pull together some of the bigger 
stake holders, it would be helpful. Smith stated that she could get the BOCC on board to use some of the 
Sage Grouse funds for the facilitator position with a wide scale of stakeholder commitment. Seward inform 
the committee that at the Technical Strategic meeting on December 6, 2021 letters of support from different 
entities supporting that we needed to do more of a landscape effort to eradicate and control cheatgrass and 
other noxious weeds. Seward asked members to get letters of support as soon as possible. Seward stated 
that he would get a letter later in the day from CPW. Magee asked what the funds from the Gunnison Sage 
Grouse fund is. Smith explained that the fund is from the fees collected from the landfill for a dedicated 
Sage Grouse fund. Many years it operated in a deficit or low balance. It has built back up. At the end of 
2022 it is projected to be $200,000+. Possible money that could be allocated to a facilitator. The perspective 
reflected back to Smith is it is not just a county issue. There are a lot of stake holders when it comes to 
cheatgrass mitigation. If we can get letters of support from stake holders, it will help get the funding from 
the County and it will help when looking at Federal funding. Magee asked where the fund is now, Smith 
said she would have to look it up but it is somewhere in the mid $100,000. Magee commented that it would 
be good to have an update a few times a year. Smith stated that the fund is intended to be used to fund 
projects. Navy stated that there was a committee formed called the Sage Grouse Mitigation Committee, 
which was separate from the Strategic committee, the purpose of that committee was to allocate those 
funds. Smith suggested that the fund be looked at again. Navy said Marlene Crosby would know more 
about the fund. Caloger stated that the fund is from landfill fees. Waste Management does not use the 
landfill. Caloger feels like it is a discriminating tax. Only those who use the landfill are contributing. Should 
we try to figure out a way to tax those that are using Waste Management. Paul Jones stated that he helped 
develop that and the question was how was the county going to pay for the expansion. They saw a dramatic 
decline in Grouse numbers in that area. Instead of a onetime mitigation it would be ongoing. The intent was 
that it was seed money. It was tied specifically to the landfill and use for the impacts from the landfill. Caloger 
asked if the money is being used for other projects. Smith stated that her understanding was that the idea 
the fund is not carrying all of the water, it was seed money. It helps attract other funding opportunities. That 
is why they are asking other stakeholders or organizations to contribute.  
 
Seward explained to the committee that at the Technical Committee meeting, they decided that they needed 
to reach out to stake holders and get letters of support.  
 
Hearne stated there are 2 other options. One is using the NRCS RCPP program for a cheatgrass project.  
This could be after a coordinator was hired and they could be the point person. The NFWF also has a 
couple funding opportunities. There is the Rocky Mountain Range lands RFP open in February 2022.  
 
John Scott stated that the majority of the mitigation fund was used to pay Jim Cochran and now that he 
isn’t being paid it is building up. 
 
Childers had a question. She did discuss a letter of support with her superintendent and they have a draft 
letter of support but felt uncomfortable with putting a $ amount and stating that they would provide financial 
support. Childers asked the other agencies what $ amount are they considering putting in a letter of support. 
They also wanted to check that this would be going through the CESU group or Western State so it would 
be easier to transfer money.     
 
Seward stated that CPW was not going to put a specific $ amount but they are going to outline what sources 
are available and feels like that will still be a great sign of support. 
 
Blair gave update on a letter of support. He is in a position that because of the continuing resolution and 
for the Federal Budget they cannot put $ amount but he did put grants that he would seek once Fish and 
Wildlife grants are unlocked again. 
 



 

3 

 

Young stated that Western does have cooperative agreement with National Park Service and if that 
becomes a possible mechanism of transfer to support the coordinator position, Young would be happy to 
work with the liaison member to make it work. 
 
Hearne shared a link. A grant opportunity through Land Trust. They have up to 8 awards for capacity 
building.   
 
Childers thanked everyone for the input. 
 
Vasquez updated the committee about the Forest Service letter of support. It has been given to the 
supervisor and should be sent out today or tomorrow. They cannot specify a specific amount. What they 
could put in letter of support is to seek funding through different resources.  
 
Vasquez also mentioned comments closed November 26th for the draft forest plan. Work begins on 
reviewing. There were 8700 comments. After the new year they will begin work on the final forest plan. 
 
Matt McCombs will be leaving. He took a position as the State Forester. Dayle Funka will be acting as 
district ranger starting in January for about 4 months.  
 
Navy commented that as she was walking out of the last meeting, Seward asked her if she would be willing 
to work on the poster that started a few years ago. Navy agreed to work on it. Navy sent Seward some 
language and ideas. Seward has not had time to review.  
 
Seward explained that some of the landfill mitigation funds were set aside for the poster.  
 
Navy would like the I & E committee to look at the posters before it is printed. Seward would like to sit down 
with Navy to select photos. Navy asked if anyone has any pictures of Sage Grouse chicks, they would love 
them. Young stated that in addition to the poster they have other swag. Keep a deadline in mind and have 
a table at the summit. Eric McPhail came through from the CSU Extension and University communication 
team.  They have decided to adopt I&E for the communication portion of the summit. Originally asked if 
they could provide some high-resolution recordings and have them uploaded on YouTube. They are willing 
to go a little farther, and work on live streaming and other options.    
 
Young added that if anyone has a nominee for the stewardship award that she would appreciate the 
nominees by Friday, December 17th.  
 
Seward updated the committee on CPW. The black bear management plan is open for comment. Bear 
proof containers are becoming a huge issue. Provide feedback if you have time. Caloger asked about 
aversion training. Seward commented that they have done some of that. Pepper spray and electrified mats 
where nuisance bears are.  
 
 
 
DISCUSSION OF ADDING WESTERN COLORADO UNIVERSITY MEMBERS TO THE STRATEGIC 
COMMITTEE 
 
Caloger stated that he thinks the involvement needs to be something long term. A member from Western 
might be a student. A faculty member would have more of a tie to the community. Seward commented that 
they would be leaning toward a faculty member. Maybe have a MBA student with a 2-year commitment, 
could be an alternate. Seward stated that the professors do encourage students to attend.  
 
Young stated that when the strategic committee was formed it was important to include all of the stake 
holders. With time one thing that occurred, when you look at the subcommittee lists, Pat Magee seems to 
be on every list. We would welcome the opportunity to populate a seat on the strategic committee from 
Western. Believes Western should have a seat. Young agrees that students should be encouraged to 
attend may not be a good fit as a member.  
 



 

4 

 

Seward went through the organizational and procedural guidelines, has not found any specific wording on 
how to add committee members. Seward believes that this needs to be brought to the BOCC. It would likely 
be a committee member that the BOCC would appoint. Smith stated that this could be discussed after the 
holidays. Smith will send an email on procedures to add new committee members. Rummel looked at 2011 
guidelines and the bottom there is the approval section. It looks like the committee amends the guidelines 
and sends to BOCC for approval. Scott stated that he was reading the same. Technically there should be 
a letter from the University recommending the member and the alternate. The last amendment was 2011 
when the added the recreation seat.  Navy commented that the same process would be followed that HCCA 
follows. Seward asked if the 2011 guidelines were distributed to all member. Rummel has those guidelines 
and will distribute. 
 
Navy suggested that the committee recommend that we would like a Western member as part of the 
committee. Seward commented that the number of members would go from 13 to 14.  Navy moved that the 
committee put forth to the BOCC a request to add a representative and an alternate from Western Colorado 
University to the Strategic Committee. Peterson seconded. 
 
 Peterson discussion that whomever that person is as well as the alternate that they need to have as much 
authority as possible so items could be moved forward without needing to wait for approval. 
 
Smith stated that based on her discussions with Magee and Young that is what the position she perceived 
from Western. Young commented that it has been discussed. When looking at decision making partnership. 
Magee and Young are the best people for that positionally. Considering the relationships with the Masters 
of Science council and graduate studies council. Entities that bring resources and decision to bear. If they 
do need something from the cabinet or presidential level they could work with Julie Baca.  
 
After discussion, Seward restated the motion on the table: to add a Western Colorado University seat to 
the strategic committee pending BOCC approval. Motion passed. 
 
Next step is for Young and McGee to work on the letter that outlines the initial best representative and 
alternative.  
 
Smith stated that the BOCC will be making quite a few appointments they beginning of the year. She will 
try to get this on for the first regular meeting of 2022. 
 
Seward reminded the committee that they need to get their letters in for the renewal of seats for the 
committee.  
 
Rummel sent what letters she has received to Smith. Jon Kaminsky asked if the letter can state that the 
field manage is the senior representative or does there need to be a name? Seward responded that the 
preference is to have the representative and alternative to be identified by name.  
 
Vasquez asked if the email that was sent earlier with Darren Long being the regular member and himself 
as the alternative. Is that good for the next term?  Rummel explained that they need to submit new letter.  
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF TECHNICAL SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING AND FOLLOW-UP CHEATGRASS 
DISCUSSION 
 
Vasquez told the committee that the meeting was on December 6th. Had great presence and the right 
people to discuss all of the issues. One discussion focused around how do we become more effective. And 
they also discussed the coordinator position which lead to the letters of support. Vasquez will take a poll 
regarding another meeting in January.  Vasquez will send that out in January as well as the meeting notes. 
Magee supplied some information about the study in Sublette County Wyoming. It was excellent 
information. We can learn from that and make it work here. Vasquez said next steps: each partner write 
letters of support to the BOCC and each members should take on an action items for the hiring of the 
coordinator. Scott was looking through the action plan and saw action item on invasive species, # 6 states 



 

5 

 

coordination of invasive plant control efforts. Make it a recommendation to the BOCC for a coordinator role 
created. Seward commented that the action plan will be looked at and updated in the afternoon part of this 
meeting. Seward asked Scott if he thought the action item 6 covered what they discussed in the technical 
committee. Scott commented that it covers everything they talked about in the technical subcommittee 
meeting. The technical subcommittee moves forward the need for a coordinator to the strategy committee. 
And once it is in front of the strategic committee it can then be brought to the BOCC.  Seward stated that 
the more he reads the action item 6 it defines creating more of a database. It would be a good idea to add 
an action plan for the coordinator. #6 of the action plan is specific to cheatgrass. Smith suggested that they 
add a separate action plan. Smith spoke with Marlene Crosby and they will meet and have a detailed 
discussion. 
 
Vasquez told the committee that the Technical Committee also stated that they should add more agencies 
and partners to the table. That will be discussed in January. 
 
Seward suggested to table further discussion regarding the adding of a coordinator until the afternoon when 
the conservation action plan is discussed.  
 
Peterson stated that from his perspective and also the Stockgrowers, that they are all in favor of the 
treatments but want to make sure the lands can be grazed the year after treatment. In the past there has 
been 2-3 years of rest on the land, they will not be supportive if the rest is mandatory. Seward asked if the 
view is across the board of the Stockgrowers. Peterson said it was unanimous. Seward said it would depend 
on the herbicide. Peterson stated it doesn’t need to be discussed at length today but it is an issue that 
needs to be discussed. Magee stated that he has only seen that with the Rejurva that there is 1-3 years 
rest that you should not re seed but has not seen anything about grazing. To reiterate Smith’s statement 
that the Gunnison County weed commission and weed program are doing a great job and are short on 
capacity. Smith stated that Crosby believes that they are in a better place now. Her discussion with Crosby 
is projecting out what is our capacity and what is needed. Scott commented on the statement about rest 
after treatment dealt more with sage brush treatments and Rejuvera works by going an inch or 2 below the 
soil and remains for years and effects annual and not perennials. The application is later in the fall and it 
can be added with snow melt. 
 
Seward shared Magee’s summary from the technical subcommittee with Peterson that was distributed at 
the Technical Committee meeting. Vasquez said he would work with Magee to invite Julie Craft to the next 
subcommittee meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

6 

 

 
WET MEADOW RESTORATION 2021 FIELD WORK UPDATE 
 
Paul Jones updated the committee on the Wet Meadow Restoration. Jones shared a power point.  
 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

7 

 

 

 
  
 
 
Navy informed the committee that HICCA is going forward with projects this coming year and are working 
on getting a bigger pool of volunteers. Looking to involve more of the community. 
Magee asked about the number of sage brush acres. How do the define sage brush acres. Jones 
responded, that the goal of the project is to improve the habitat. We measure 50 meters on each side of 
the wetland area. The vegetation monitoring also showed that through drought there is a dip in vegetation 
but it has an immediate recovery. Magee also asked, on the wetland acres what resolution does it have on 
the wetland plants? There is a huge data set that will go to publication this year. They monitored all species. 
 
Seward called a break for lunch at 12:47 pm. 
 
Seward called the meeting back to order at 1:13 pm 
 
 
 GUNNISON COUNTY SAGE-GROUSE CONSERVATION ACTION PLAN DISCUSSION 
 
At the December meeting, action item #1 was discussed and updated. 
 
Action item #2, Create Organization Structure for Action Plan Implementation. With the specific objective, 
Communication and Coordination 
 
In Action Description, agree to change the word “Research Subcommittee” to “Technical Committee”.  
 
Navy commented that the term “local working group” needs to be taken out throughout the document. First 
place being in action plan #2 in the Measurable Results. Rummel made a note to remove from entire 
document. Peterson suggested that the wording was meant for a transition. What it was designed to do has 
been accomplished. Peterson stated that this action plan has been complete. Scott commented that it was 
completed. Navy stated that the name of the action group is to create an organization structure which could 
have many new ways to do that, not relating to the working group. Scott stated that you can either put it 
down as an ongoing activity that we do or create another action item. Scott stated that the communication 
is better now then ever so not sure if you need an action plan. Navy stated that it seems that every action 
on the action plan has its own method to being implemented. Do we want an overarching action plan? it 
may not be necessary if every action has an implementation of its own.  
 
Seward was leaning toward a new action item but believes that they just list it has completed and move on. 



 

8 

 

 
Caloger suggested making a footnote about the change to the “local working group” explaining what it has 
changed to.  
 
Seward suggested that they add the change to the introduction under “Including Stakeholders”.  
 
Scott asked if the committee was updating or rewriting the action plan. You won’t lose the historical aspect 
of the document.  
 
Navy commented that there are important items that needs to be added. For instance, the wetland 
restoration, that was not being done 2009.  
 
Seward commented that the wetland restoration should be added to the living document as action item #9. 
Action item #10 can be the development of a weed coordinator. 
 
Under accomplishments add the ongoing organizational structures such as the technical subcommittee. 
  
Action item #3- Use of the Gunnison County Sage Grouse Conservation Trust with the specific objective 
of habitat conservation. 
 
Navy suggested that under description the funding partnership part be updated. 
 
Seward sees this action plan as ongoing with the fee at the landfill. He wouldn’t consider it high priority any 
more. 
 
Scott suggested that if you look at the measurable results and the objective, it is about habitat conservation. 
The wetland restoration would fit under the measurable results. 
 
Navy commented that it could also include all of the acreage that is being protected by Legacy. Scott 
commented that a lot of items could be added. 
 
Seward asked if all of the funded improvements should be added. It was decided that under 
accomplishments by 2021, funded several small scale- habitat improvement projects will be added. 
 
Navy commented that how the funds are going to be used now should be added. Seward suggested that a 
comment could be added to state it is being considered to use some of the funds for a county need program 
coordinator. Peterson asked if it would specific to cheatgrass. He is concerned about overlap with what the 
county already has. 
 
Smith commented that there is an overlapping piece. And it should focus on the aspect of restoration of 
habitat for Sage-Grouse. 
 
Seward commented that is what separates it for him and makes it a separate action item. 
Under current status and ongoing Actions, it was decided to add, the strategic committee is exploring the 
use of the fund for cheatgrass treatment coordinator, see action item #10. 
 
Kugler asked if that would change the priority ranking? Smith commented that since it is going to be a 
separate action item that the ranking can be listed in that action item. 
 
Seward stated that if it is going to be its own action item, it will be ranked high priority in the action. 
 
The committee agreed that they were comfortable with action item #3 and can move on to #4. 
 
Action item #4- Community Awareness with the specific objective Information and Education 
 



 

9 

 

Seward stated that this is ongoing. Doesn’t see much change in this action item. Need to add the 
development of a conversation poster that is currently in progress. Capture it in Current Status and Ongoing 
Actions 
 
Change “man” power to “people” power. 
 
Smith asks if the items under accomplishments have been attempted and are they still relevant? Rummel 
stated that she believes there are T-shirts and bumper stickers. Navy said some are still being worked on. 
The mural came to a halt but Navy believes that it should be done. Rummel asked if the mural that is 
happening at the IOOF park can be combined with the Sage Grouse. The committee thinks it is a good 
idea. Smith will look into that. 
 
Added under Current Status and Ongoing Action: Links for understanding wildlife issues are in place on the 
Gunnison County website. Rummel will look into the website to see what there is. Navy suggested that 
Kugler probably has information going out to the public about sage grouse and trails. Kugler responded that 
it is mostly on closures and that falls in the recreation action item. Kugler suggested that it could be added 
here that Gunnison Trails collaborates with other stakeholders to distribute information about seasonal 
sage-grouse related road and trail closures. 
 
Seward commented that more research needs to be done on the websites to see what links exist and what 
can be improved on. 
 
 
Action item # 5 was addressed at the November meeting 
 
Action item #6 – Coordination of Invasive Plant Control Efforts with the specific objective habitat/monitoring 
and reporting 
 
Created a centralized database and utilize Gunnison County GIS department to keep better track of 
locations. Rummel stated that she began to update this to include the hiring of a cheatgrass coordinator. 
The hired cheatgrass coordinator working directly with the GIS coordinator would help move it along. 
Seward commented that it would be best if it was all encompassing of public and private lands but there 
has to be sensitivity to what sensitive information is being stored regarding private lands. 
 
Seward suggested that Mike Pellletier from the GIS department could help us with sensitive information 
collected for private lands. Seward asked Peterson if it is in state regulations that private landowners have 
to mitigate noxious weeds. Peterson was not sure if there is a specific regulation. 
 
Scott stated the Colorado Department of Agriculture may have that information. They have passed that 
responsibility on to counties and local weed commissions. Seward asked Scott if he thought it was a 
problem to collect data on private lands. Scott stated that he would leave it up to the private landowner on 
what information they wanted documented and shared. Coordinated effort needs to be target.  
 
Under responsibility add detailed information regarding the coordinator position but it still needs to be its 
own action plan. 
 
Navy suggest to add “formally” before the Gunnison County Wildlife Conservation Coordinator and after 
field work add the word coordinator. 
 
Committee agreed to escalate ranking/priority to high. 
 
Smith asked how the historical and present is being differentiated? 
 
Rummel stated that she could reference the edits to the action item #10 to help clarify the changes.  
 
Other changes to the action item were, change coordination to mapping in the title of the action. With this 
change, take out coordinator and add to the additional action item.  



 

10 

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
None. 
 
FUTURE MEETINGS: Future meetings will occur by Zoom online meetings, unless changed for a 
specific reason.  
 

01-19-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

02-16-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

03-16-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

04-20-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

05-18-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

06-15-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

07-20-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

08-17-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

09-21-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

10-19-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

11-16-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

12-21-22 10-12 Regular Meeting Blackstock; 221 N. Wisconsin 2nd floor meeting room 

    

 
ADJOURN: The December 15, 2021 meeting of the Gunnison Basin Sage-grouse Strategic Committee 
adjourned at 2:11 PM 
 
Minutes Prepared By: Shannon Frias, Administrative Assistant III, Community Development 


	Packet Cover Sheet Wildlife Conservation 01.19.22
	2022 01 19 agenda
	Development Flow Chart4
	12.15.21 Working SC Meeting Minutes_ALR

